ANNEX A

A small amount of information has been withheld under Regulation 10(5)(f) (third party
interests). This exception is subject to the ‘public interest test’. Therefore, taking account of
all the circumstances of this case, we have considered if the public interest in disclosing the
information outweighs the public interest in applying the exception. We have found that, on
balance, the public interest lies in favour of upholding the exception. We recognise that there
is some public interest in releasing the information as part of an open, transparent and
accountable government. However, disclosure of this particular information would, or would
be likely to, prejudice substantially the confidentiality of said information and the interests of
those providing information to the Scottish Government in confidence.

A small amount of information has been withheld from the document under Regulation 11 —
Personal Data as it contains personal information and disclosing it would contravene the
data protection principles in Article 5(1) of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)
and in Section 34(1) of the Data Protection Act 2018. This exception is not subject to the
‘public interest test’.
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ANNEX B

From: Donald Fraser <donald.fraser@nature.scot>

Sent: 10 June 2025 12:37

To: [REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]<[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]@gov.scot>
Subject: Confidential : Muirburn Licensing - Commencement

[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)],
For info:
Donald

Donald Fraser | Head of Wildlife Management

NatureScot |Great Glen House | Inverness | IV3 8NW | [REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)] |
[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From: Ross Ewing <Ross.Ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: 09 June 2025 22:21

To: Robbie Kernahan <robbie.kernahan@nature.scot>; Donald Fraser
<donald.fraser@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]<[REDACTED:
REGULATON 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]@gov.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]@gov.scot; Sarah Jane Laing <[REDACTED:
REGULATON 11(2)]@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>; Robert Scott-Dempster
<[REDACTED: REGULATON 11(2)]@gillespiemacandrew.co.uk>; [REDACTED:
REGULATON 11(2)]@scottishgamekeepers.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATON
11(2)]@scot-rmg.co.uk>; Peter Clark (Scotland) <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@basc.org.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nfus.org.uk
Subject: Muirburn Licensing - Commencement

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Dear Robbie, Donald & [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Following receipt of an email from [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] on 27 May to the
moorland forum, our organisations have communicated the request for land managers to
start the process of preparing for submitting muirburn licence applications. [REDACTED:

REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)] [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] [REDACTED:
REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

We understand the Minister will shortly take a decision on this matter and we share this
opinion in the hope of aiding that decision and delivering a workable outcome for all parties.
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I’'m copying this to [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] and [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)] at SG for their reference, and [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Please let me know if you have any questions and we look forward to hearing from you in
due course.

Best wishes,
Ross

Ross Ewing MSc MA (Hons) MCIPR FRGS

Director of Moorland

Scottish Land & Estates

Stuart House, Eskmills Business Park, Musselburgh EH21 7PB

M: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] T: 0131 653 5400 W: scottishlandandestates.co.uk
Twitter: @ScotLandEstates

Follow us: v o @ @ °

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity W Scottish Government

Ministear an Aiteachais agus Ceangal . Riaghaltas na h-Alba
Jim Fairlie MSP

Jim Fairlie BPA

T: 0300 244 4000
E: Scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Francesca Osowska
Chief Executive NatureScot
ceo@nature.scot

28 June 2024
Dear Francesca

The Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 (Commencement No. 1)
Regulations 2024 appoint 01 July as the day for the coming into force of Section 10 (for the
purposes of inserting sections 16AC and 16AD into the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
(“the 1981 Act”), Section 18 and Section 21 of the Wildlife Management and Muirburn
(Scotland) Act 2024 (“the Act”), so far as not already in force.

The Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 (Commencement No. 1)
Regulations 2024 also appoint 22 July as the day for the coming into force of Section 9 and
the remaining purposes of Section 10 of the Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland)
Act 2024 (“the Act”), so far as not already in force.

Sections 16AD and 16(3) of the Act allows Scottish Ministers to delegate their functions in
relation to section 16AA licences and the code of practice under Section 10 of the Act to
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NatureScot (Scottish Natural Heritage). Section 21 allows Scottish Ministers to delegate their
functions in relation to muirburn licences, training and the muirburn code under sections
13,14,15,16,17,18 and 19(3)(b) and (4) to NatureScot (Scottish Natural Heritage). Section 7
of the Act inserts sections 12A-12G into the 1981 Act in relation to wildlife trap licences.
Section 7(4) inserts provision into the 1981 Act which enables Scottish Ministers to delegate
the functions in section 12B, 12C, 12D and 12E of the 1981 Act to NatureScot (Scottish
Natural Heritage).

| am writing to delegate the functions of the Scottish Ministers under sections 7 (in relation to
sections 12B, 12C, 12D and 12E of the 1981 Act), 10 (in relation to sections 16AA and 16AC
and 16AF), 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19(3)(b) and (4). NatureScot (Scottish Natural Heritage)
with effect from 01 July 2024.

Yours sincerely,

JIM FAIRLIE

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@invercauld.estate
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2024 6:33 PM

To: Swinney J (John), MSP <John.Swinney.msp@parliament.scot>
Subject: Muirburn Licensing - Process

Dear Mr Swinney

| wish to voice our concern overs the delivery of muirburn licensing as set out in the Wildlife
Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act which was passed earlier this year by the Scottish
Parliament. | would stress this concern is not with regards to the Act itself or the principle of
muirburn licensing, but rather the process of implementing the legislation.

We undertake muirburn at Invercauld Estate from time to time for a number of purposes,
principally to enable the natural regeneration of heather for grouse and grasses for deer or
livestock.

Muirburn is a complicated process which is both an art and a science. There is a significant
and growing body of scientific evidence evaluating the benefits of muirburn but also a huge
amount of skill among those who have undertaken muirburn for many years, sometimes for a
number of generations. This makes the right and wrong way to undertake muirburn
something which is often more grey rather than black and white in nature: this does not
make it an easy subject for good regulation.

In addition, more than one party can have the right to undertake muirburn on the same
ground whilst surveying much of the ground over which muirburn is undertaken, particularly
in areas of the Highlands such as upland Perthshire, is a time-consuming and arduous
process due to the extent and geography of the landscapes involved.

With this complex background, there is much still to be agreed to enable muirburn licensing
to be successfully introduced by NatureScot including an updated Muirburn Code that can
address these complexities adequately, training systems and surveying for peat depths. |
was therefore very concerned to see in the recently published Scottish Biodiversity Delivery
Plan 2024-2030 the proposal to implement muirburn licensing by spring 2025.
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Given the difficulties this summer implementing licensing for the right to kill/take red grouse
under the same Act, a very much simpler process than muirburn licensing, | am therefore
concerned that it appears the implementation of the latter is being rushed. As rushed
legislation makes for poor legislation, the same can be said for regulation. | believe this may
have been the case with the licensing for the right to kill/take red grouse and that did not
reflect well on either the Scottish Government or NatureScot.

| would encourage you therefore to ensure that the licensing for muirburn is introduced as
per the will of the Scottish Parliament, but that this is done in a manner and timeframe which
ensures its complexities are fully and comprehensively addressed in order that it can be an
exemplar of how the Scottish Government can deliver regulation over a complex subject.

| would be very happy to discuss our concerns with you more fully if this would be helpful.
Yours sincerely,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
For Invercauld Estate

INVERCAULD

ESTATE

The Estate Office Tel. [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

4 The Keiloch [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@invercauld.estate
Braemar www.invercauld.estate

Ballater

AB35 5TW

[OUT OF SCOPE]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@Parliament.scot> On Behalf Of Fairlie J (Jim),
MSP

Sent: 10 December 2024 10:07

To: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity <MinisterforAC@gov.scot>

Subject: FW: Muirburn Licensing and Training Requirements

Importance: High

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]<info@brightsparkburningtechniques.co.uk>
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2024 9:57 AM

To: Fairlie J (Jim), MSP <Jim.Fairlie. MSP@Parliament.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@brightsparkburningtechniques.co.uk; lain Hepburn
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@brightsparkburningtechniques.co.uk>

Subject: Muirburn Licensing and Training Requirements

Dear Minister

Please find attached a letter of concern from Bright Spark Burning Techniques who are the
training provider for the new training that is required under the new Muirburn Licence.

A copy of this correspondence will also be shared with Calum and lain’s constituency MSPs
as well as the Convenor of the Rural Affairs and Islands Committee.
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[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
Email: info@brightsparkburningtechniques.co.uk
Phone: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

10 December 2024

Jim Fairlie MSP

Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity
St Andrew’s House

Regent Road

Edinburgh

EH1 3DG

Dear Minister
Concern Regarding Proposed Implementation Of Muirburn Licensing Provisions

After a meeting between SFRS, NatureScot and Bright Spark Burning Techniques on 20
November, there seems to be a thought process that before Licences to Burn are granted,
that the people should already have received their training, which is a requirement of the
Licence.

As you are aware, this is a major step forward to make the practice of using burning as a
working tool, which will change the working environment within the Land Management
Sector, by impacting the Health and Safety and professionalism of the whole industry.

With the major changes taking place, the training and the peat probing required for the
Licence, will take a considerable effort to bring this about by the proposed commencement
date of September 2025.

It was also with considerable surprise that we read in the Scottish Biodiversity Plan 2024-
2030 that the muirburn provisions of this Legislation is by Spring 2025.

We know that this would be beyond our resource capacity to have all relevant land
managers trained by then and therefore we would ask you to consider a realistic grace
period to implement all parts of the Legislation. The weather plays a major part of the
training programme and last season’s very wet spring curtailed the amount of practical
training that could be achieved.

Hopefully we will be able to discuss with you at the MCWG meeting tomorrow.

Your sincerely

Calum Kippen.  lain Hepburn
Directors

cc Fergus Ewing, Kate Forbes, Finlay Carson
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Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity W Scottish Government
Jim Fairlie MSP . Riaghaltas na h-Alba

T: 0300 244 4000
E: scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Calum Kippen
info@brightsparkburningtechniquies.co.uk

Ourref: 202400445819
Your Reference: Muirburn Licensing and Training Requirements

16 January 2025

Dear Mr Kippen,

Thank you for your letter of 10 December 2024 raising your concerns regarding proposed
implementation of muirburn licensing provisions under the Wildlife Management and
Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024.

As | mentioned during the Muirburn Code Working Group meeting on 11 December 2024, it
is still the Scottish Government’s intention to bring the muirburn provisions in to effect in time
for the 2025-26 muirburn season. As you allude to in your letter, the muirburn licensing
scheme and training of practitioners is very important, hence why | urged the meeting
attendees to work constructively with NatureScot to ensure the currently ongoing work is
concluded as soon as possible.

| understand you have recently had a constructive conversation with officials to discuss in
more detail the implications of bringing the muirburn provisions in to effect this year and you
plan to meet again in person at the end of January. | encourage you to continue these
conversations as although it is my intention to ensure that the licensing provisions are
commenced as planned, | continue to be open to views on the timing of these provisions
coming in to effect and options available to ensure practitioners are supported.

Regarding your concerns about the Scottish Biodiversity Strategy delivery plan wording
which stated that the muirburn provisions would be implemented “by Spring 2025”. This was
a typo in the delivery plan and the wording has now been amended to state “2025” i.e. to
bring the muirburn provisions in to effect prior to the muirburn season in Autumn 2025.

| hope this proves helpful.
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Yours sincerely,

JIM FAIRLIE

From: Alex Rowley MSP <alex.rowley.msp@parliament.scot>

Sent: 17 December 2024 13:49

To: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity <MinisterforAC@gov.scot>
Subject: FW: Muirburn Licensing - Process (Case Ref: AR9300)

Dear Minister,

| have received the below email from a business that lies partly in my region and | wondered
if you could provide a response on the points they are making regarding their concerns that
the implementation of muirburn licensing is being rushed so that | may share with the
business?

Kind regards
Alex

Alex Rowley MSP

Office of Alex Rowley MSP, Mid Scotland and Fife

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] / 01592 786725

Regional Office: Ore Valley Business Centre, 93 Main Street, Lochgelly, Fife, KY5 9AF
Parliamentary Office: M1.04, The Scottish Parliament, Edinburgh, EH99 1SP

To find out more please visit: www.alexrowley.org

Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity v‘ Scottish Government

Ministear airson Aiteachas agus Comas-ceangail - Riaghaltas na h-Alba
Jim Fairlie MSP/BPA

T : 0300 244 4000
E : scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Alex Rowley MSP
alex.rowley.msp@parliament.scot

Our Reference: 202400445700
Your Reference: Muirburn Licensing - Process (Case Ref: AR9300) 8 January 2025
Dear Alex,

Thank you for your correspondence of 17 December 2024 raising the concerns of your
constituent, [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] on behalf of Invercauld Estate, regarding
proposed implementation of muirburn licensing provisions under the Wildlife Management
and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024.
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| would like to assure your constituent, [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] that the Scottish
Government appreciates his concerns and that | have discussed this matter recently through
the Muirburn Code Working Group to which | received constructive feedback.

As | mentioned during the Muirburn Code Working Group meeting on 11 December 2024, it
is still the Scottish Government’s intention to bring the muirburn provisions in to effect in time
for the 2025-26 muirburn season. | therefore urged the meeting attendees and their
colleagues to work constructively with NatureScot to ensure the currently ongoing work is
concluded as soon as possible.

Although it is my intention to ensure that the licensing provisions are commenced as
planned, | continue to be open to views on the timing of these provisions coming in to effect.
| have instructed my officials to continue to liaise with stakeholders with a view to providing
me with feedback regarding any concerns.

Regarding stakeholders concerns about the Scottish Biodiversity Strategy delivery plan
wording which stated that the muirburn provisions would be implemented “by Spring 2025”.
This was a typo in the delivery plan and the wording has now been amended to state “2025”
i.e. to bring the muirburn provisions in to effect prior to the muirburn season in Autumn 2025.
| hope this proves helpful.

Yours sincerely,

JIM FAIRLIE

From: Ross Ewing <Ross.Ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>

Sent: 06 December 2024 15:27

To: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity <MinisterforAC@gov.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@heathertrust.co.uk; Peter Clark <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@basc.org.uk>; Donna Smith (donna@crofting.org)
<donna@crofting.org>; 'Calum Kippen' <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@outlook.com>;
lain Hepburn <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@hotmail.co.uk>; Nick Hesford
<nhesford@gwct.org.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nfus.org.uk

Subject: Letter of Concern - Commencement of Muirburn Licensing Provisions

Importance: High

Dear Minister,
Please find attached a letter of concern from eight members of the Muirburn Code Working
Group (MCWG) regarding the proposed commencement of the muirburn licensing provisions

in the WMM Act.

The MCWG was established by NatureScot to assist with the development of the statutory
muirburn code as well as other aspects of muirburn licensing and training.

All signatories to the attached letter represent the members of the land management
community, including landowners, crofters, land agents, farmers and gamekeepers. We
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hope that you take seriously the concerns set out in this correspondence ahead of next
week’s meeting of the MCWG, which we understand you are attending.

A copy of this correspondence will be shared with the convenor of the rural affairs and
islands committee forthwith. We look forward to discussing this matter further with you.

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

Follow us: &G -

Our Ref: 20241203JF
06 December 2024

Jim Fairlie MSP

Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity
St Andrew’s House

Regent Road

Edinburgh

EH1 3DG

Dear Minister,

CONCERN REGARDING PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION OF MUIRBURN LICENSING
PROVISIONS

We hope this finds you well. The signatories to this letter are all members of the Muirburn
Code Working Group (MCWG) which was established by NatureScot to assist with the
development of a statutory muirburn code, as well as other aspects of muirburn licensing
and training.

We write to you today to express our collective concern about the Scottish Government'’s
suggested implementation date for the muirburn provisions of the Wildlife Management and
Muirburn Act. Action 7.3 of the Scottish Biodiversity Delivery Plan 2024-2030, published by
the Scottish Government on 27 November 2024, suggests that the muirburn provisions of
the legislation will be implemented “by Spring 2025”. We would like to express our collective
concern about this timescale, which we believe to be unrealistic and potentially damaging.

NatureScot, with support from the MCWG, are taking forward three main deliverables which
are required to give effect to the provisions of the Act. These are: i) updating the muirburn
code; ii) designing a licensing scheme for muirburn predicated on the determination of peat
depth at the 40cm threshold; and iii) the delivery of muirburn training to all practitioners.

G, |2
Vi

urow,
uuuuuuuu

" [©@disabilit
42/[© INVESTORS IN PECIPLE™ |ZRdscbity) —ow/

¢ Weinvestin people Silver LEADER ‘V

1SO14001 at V.Q.

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
WWWw.gov.scot



Advancing these deliverables has been a complex process and, while progress has been
made, these workstreams are still some way off completion.

Even once completed, the onus then shifts to licence applicants. There are several actions
which are required to be completed to obtain a licence, and we have concluded in
consultation with our respective members that there will not be sufficient time to execute
these actions ahead of the start of the 2025 muirburn season. The scale of the challenge is
likely to be particularly acute for small operators with more limited resources; while larger
operators may also struggle with the scale and extent of survey work.

The requirement for a person intending to make muirburn to have completed an approved
training course — coupled with the requirement to survey land to determine the depth of peat
and produce corresponding maps to support an application — are time-consuming and
arduous tasks. Thereafter, NatureScot will require time to consider an application and
respond. As with all new licensing schemes, it is not unreasonable to expect there to be
initial issues which will require dialogue between applicant and NatureScot. The upshot of
these points is that the process for obtaining muirburn licences in the first year of
operation will likely be a protracted one which we do not consider realistic or
achievable ahead of the start of the 2025 muirburn season.

We understand you are due to attend a meeting of the MCWG next week and we welcome
this opportunity to engage with you directly. However, we wanted to write to you ahead of
this meeting to formally notify you of our concern and request that you give consideration to
commencing the muirburn licensing provisions ahead of the 2026 season, thus giving
applicants and regulator sufficient time to prepare.

Thank you for considering this correspondence — a copy of which we are sharing with the
Convenor of the Rural Affairs and Islands Committee whom we expect might take a post-
legislative interest in this matter.

Yours sincerely,

Ross Ewing Katrina Candy Peter Clark
Director of Moorland Scottish Land  Director Director Scotland
& Estates The Heather Trust BASC
Donna Smith Calum Kippen lain Hepburn
Chief Executive Muirburn Trainer Muirburn Trainer
Scottish Crofting Federation Scotland’s Regional Mooreland SGA

Groups
Dr Nick Hesford Alasdair Macnab
Head of Advisory (Scotland) Vice President
GWCT NFU Scotland
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

Mr Ross Ewing
Ross.Ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk

Ourref: 202400444433
Your ref: Letter of Concern — Commencement of Muirburn Licensing Provisions

8 January 2025

Dear Mr Ewing,

Thank you for your joint letter of 6 December 2024, whose signatories are members of the
Muirburn Code Working Group, raising their concerns regarding proposed implementation of
muirburn licensing provisions under the Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act
2024.

| would like to thank both you and the signatories of your letter for providing constructive
feedback to both myself and through the Muirburn Code Working Group.

As | mentioned during the Muirburn Code Working Group meeting on 11 December 2024, it
is still the Scottish Government’s intention to bring the muirburn provisions in to effect in time
for next year’'s muirburn season. | therefore urge both you and your colleagues to work
constructively with NatureScot to ensure the currently ongoing work is concluded as soon as
possible. Although it is my intention to ensure that the licensing provisions are commenced
as planned, | continue to be open to views on the timing of these provisions coming in to
effect. | have instructed my officials to continue to liaise with stakeholders such as
yourselves with a view to providing me with feedback regarding any concerns.

| hope this proves helpful.
Yours sincerely,

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
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Jim Fairlie

From: Ross Ewing

Sent: 04 April 2025 10:47

To: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@heathertrust.co.uk; Peter Clark ; Donna Smith ; 'Calum Kippen' ; Nick
Hesford ; lain Hepburn ; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nfus.org.uk

Subject: Growing Concerns Regarding Muirburn Licensing Implementation

Importance: High

Dear Minister,

Please find attached correspondence from eight members of NatureScot’s Muirburn Code
Working Group (MCWG) highlighting growing concerns regarding the implementation of
muirburn licensing. The signatory organisations — all of which represent or work with
muirburn practitioners — are:

Scottish Land & Estates

The Heather Trust

The British Association for Shooting & Conservation
The Scottish Crofting Federation

Scotland’s Regional Moorland Groups

The Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust

The Scottish Gamekeepers Association

The National Farmers Union of Scotland

We look forward to hearing from you in due course.
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

Our Ref: 20240404 JF
04 April 2025

Jim Fairlie MSP

Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity
St Andrew’s House

Regent Road

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
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Edinburgh
EH1 3DG

Dear Minister,

GROWING CONCERN REGARDING COMMENCEMENT OF MUIRBURN LICENSING
PROVISIONS

We hope this finds you well. Further to our letter of 06 December 2024, the undersigned
members of NatureScot’s Muirburn Code Working Group (MCWG) write to you today to
underscore in the strongest possible terms our growing concern regarding the
commencement of muirburn licensing provisions.

Following your attendance at the MCWG on 11 December, you made clear your keenness to
see the licensing of muirburn implemented ahead of the 2025-26 muirburn season, and that
the MCWG should treat the revising of the muirburn code with urgency. The undersigned
have duly followed your direction in this regard, attending three MCWG meetings since
January and investing a considerable amount of time and resource in the code’s
development. We have also provided input to the development of the muirburn licensing
regime — details of which have started to emerge at recent meetings — and put forward
members to test the licensing prototype. MCWG members have also hosted NatureScot in
the field on two occasions to discuss aspects of the code and licensing. We have done all
these things collegiately and in the spirit of urgency you requested of the group on 11
December.

It is with regret, therefore, that we write to make clear to Scottish Ministers that our
concerns about the commencement of muirburn licensing provisions have grown
considerably since December. The complexity inherent in the draft muirburn licensing
regime is such that the time remaining between the launch of the licensing scheme (future
date to be confirmed) and the 15 September 2025 will be completely insufficient to undertake
the survey work required to obtain a muirburn licence. We also question NatureScot’s ability
to process the volume of applications within this timescale. Prospective applicants
understandably want to garner as much certainty as possible from licence applications by
submitting a single application for their entire landholding for as long a duration as possible.
This is especially important against the backdrop of cost recovery for licensing functions
which is widely expected to be introduced forthwith, and the fact that muirburn almost
exclusively takes place at the start and end of the season. The ability to burn under licence
come September is, therefore, extremely important and should be obtainable within a
workable licensing regime.

The situation is significantly exacerbated by the limitations inherent in the definition of
peatland prescribed in the Wildlife Management and Muirburn Act 2024, which encapsulates
‘land where the soil has a layer of peat with a thickness of more than 40 centimetres”. As
you know from the Act’s progression through parliament, no national survey data exists
reflecting where the peat is deeper than 40cm. There is, however, national survey data at the
>50cm depth threshold. The result of the 40cm definition is that the NatureScot Muirburn
Peatland map (see here) reflects three data layers (peatland in purple; non-peatland in grey;
and uncertain in green). The scale and extent of the uncertain data layer is considerable and
a direct product of the limitations of the peatland definition prescribed in the Act. NatureScot
intends to apply arduous probing methodology B (involving 100m grid sample points) on both
peatland and uncertain areas. On one estate who has tested the prototype, the uncertain
data layer will necessitate some 4,000 data points to be probed.
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In the spirit of working together and finding consensus, we would like to collectively propose
three options which we believe would enable Ministers to meet their objectives without
needlessly compromising the ability of land managers to obtain licences for making
muirburn. Each option is set out below.

1.

Scottish Ministers temporarily amend the definition of peatland by regulation
under s22(3) of the Act to reflect “land where the soil has a layer of peat with a
thickness of more than 50 centimetres”, until such a time that national survey
data at the 40cm depth threshold becomes available. This would undoubtedly be
the neatest solution resulting in the NatureScot muirburn peatland map reflecting two
data layers — one for peatland; one for non-peatland. The regulation can be made by
simply consulting NatureScot and other such persons Ministers consider likely to be
interested in or affected by the making of muirburn. Such a change would allow
Ministers to get a licensing scheme in place by the start of the 2025-26 muirburn
season without significantly compromising the ability of land managers to obtain
licences.

Scottish Ministers direct NatureScot to apply surveying methodology A to
uncertain areas in the muirburn peatland map. This would ease the surveying
burden on uncertain areas while still retaining a degree of checking and enable
Ministers to get a licensing scheme in place by the start of the 2025-26 muirburn
season without significantly compromising the ability of land managers to obtain
licences.

Scottish Ministers delay the implementation of muirburn licensing until the start
of the 2026-27 muirburn season, thereby providing land managers with one year
to obtain the requisite survey data now the expectations are known. Adopting
this option would give NatureScot the time to support land managers with their data
collection, troubleshooting where required. Any costs incurred from doing the survey
work would also be spread across a longer timescale, easing the overarching financial
burden.

At present, the licensing scheme is stacked against land managers in a way that is both
disproportionate and unreasonable. NatureScot have been fully appraised of the
consequences associated with the current approach, and we would urge you to discuss this
with them and us. We want to reach a solution whereby all parties can feel satisfied that the
licensing scheme is workable, credible, reasonable and proportionate. We believe any of the
above options would strike the right balance and would urge you to consider them as a
priority. We would be happy to discuss this with you and / or your officials in greater detail.

We look forward to hearing from you. Please note a copy of this correspondence the interim
CEO and Chair of NatureScot.

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

" [ D@ disabilit
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
Jim Fairlie MSP - Riaghaltas na h-Alba

T: 0300 244 4000
E: scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Ross Ewing
Ross.Ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk

Our Reference: 202500460761
Your Reference: Growing Concerns Regarding Muirburn Licensing Implementation

13 May 2025

Dear Ross Ewing,

Thank you for your letter of 4 April 2025 on behalf of NatureScot’s Muirburn Code Working
Group, raising their concerns in relation the commencement of the muirburn licensing
provisions.

The Minister has suggested that it would be beneficial to have a meeting to discuss this
further. | would be grateful of you could contact the Minister's Diary Secretary at

MinisterforAC@gov.scot to make the necessary arrangements.

Yours sincerely,

Ellie Munro
Private Secretary

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>
Sent: 10 March 2025 09:20
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To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]l <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@firescotland.gov.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: Comms lines to take on muirburn training

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] & [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

We’ve pulled together some proposed lines to take on the muirburn training and would be
grateful if you can let me know if you are happy with these:

Under new legislation expected to come into effect later this year, all muirburn will need to be
carried out under licence. A condition of the licence is that anyone carrying out muirburn
must have completed a training course. In future this will include both an online and a
practical course.

Due to the expected high demand for practical courses, combined with a limited amount of
trainer capacity and a challenging timetable before the 2025/26 muirburn season, we have
agreed with the Scottish Government and Scottish Fire and Rescue Service that there will be
a transitional period for the first year of the licence only. For the 2025/26 season, anyone
carrying out muirburn on land covered by a licence must have successfully completed the
online course and must commit to complete the practical course as soon as possible.

Currently no training at all is required for carrying out muirburn in Scotland, so we believe
this is a pragmatic interim step that will ensure there is awareness and knowledge of the
standards required for muirburn while recognising the potential barriers to all those who want
to access the practical training in time. NatureScot will have the ability to revoke the licence
in question if there are any issues with muirburn not meeting the required standards.

Backqground information

The commencement dates for the muirburn licence provisions of the Wildlife Management
and Muirburn Act 2024 will be announced by the Scofttish Government. We are working to
the expectation that the muirburn licence will be introduced ahead of the 2025/26 muirburn
season.

The online module will cover the requirements of the new Muirburn Code, due to be
published shortly, which sets out the essential considerations for muirburn, including where
and when muirburn can be carried out, the required notifications before setting muirburn and
necessary safety measures.

Many thanks,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] | Moorland Licensing Manager

NatureScot | Cameron House | Albany Street | Oban | PA34 4AE

NatureScot | Taigh Chamshron | Sraid Albanaidh | An t-Oban | Earra-Ghaidheal | PA34
4AE

m: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba
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This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If
you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender.

Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming emails from and to NatureScot may be monitored.

Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois diomhair agus airson an neach no buidheann ainmichte a- mhain. Mas e gun d’ fhuair
sibh am post-dealain seo le mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach- sgriobhaidh.

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a- mach bho
NadarAlba.

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 17 June 2025 15:49

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>
Cc: Donald Fraser <Donald.Fraser@nature.scot>

Subject: draft email for Moorland Forum and MCWG

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
c/c Donald,

See below a draft, brief email to Moorland Forum and the Muirburn Code WG. Happy to
make any changes or add any details. | will forward the contact lists for each group to you. |
can also share our lines to take once I've confirmed them with comms.

Thanks, [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Dear Moorland Forum members/Muirburn Code Working Group,
Update on commencement date for the new muirburn licence

Many thanks to everyone who has contributed to the development of the Muirburn Code and
commented on the developing licencing approach to muirburn. After careful consideration,
the Minister has decided to bring in the muirburn licensing provisions, as set out in the
Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024, so that they take effect on 15t
January 2026. This will give all those who need to survey peat depths time to do so over the
summer and autumn. NatureScot will continue to develop the on-line application process
which is due to go live this summer.

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

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun teid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a- mach bho
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

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],
For info:
Donald

Donald Fraser | Head of Wildlife Management

NatureScot |Great Glen House | Inverness | IV3 8NW | [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] |
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]>

Sent: 10 June 2025 10:37

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>
Cc: Donald Fraser <donald.fraser@nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn Licensing - Commencement

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)].

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

| am around if you would like to discuss before 11am.

Kind regards,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 10 June 2025 09:22

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]>

Cc: Donald Fraser <Donald.Fraser@nature.scot>
Subject: FW: Muirburn Licensing - Commencement

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - can you let us know your views on this,
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)] Donald has a meeting at 11am — if you see anything
that we should be aware of can you let us know.

Thanks,

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
<donald.fraser@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)j@gov.scot;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gillespiemacandrew.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@scottishgamekeepers.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@scot-rmg.co.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@basc.org.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nfus.org.uk

Subject: Muirburn Licensing - Commencement

Restricted, Confidential & Legally Privileged - Intended for Action and Info Addresses
Dear Robbie, Donald & [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

Further to our correspondence and discussions regarding muirburn licensing, [REDACTED:
REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Following receipt of an email from [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] on 27 May to the
moorland forum, our organisations have communicated the request for land managers to
start the process of preparing for submitting muirburn licence applications. Since then, we
have been in receipt of a significant amount of information from members about the scale
and extent of the preparatory works required. Our organisations have collated this
information from a diversity of landholdings and shared this with [REDACTED:
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
11(2)] at SG for their reference, [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

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

Follow us: O o @ o

Join today...

Scottish T J @
Land&Estates " °I° =2 ég

ARmED FoRCES
COVENANT

SILVER AWARD
Proudly supporting those who serve.
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19 - 22 June 2025

Come visit us and our stand partners at our usual location on 4th Avenue.
’ L - )

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager or the sender.

Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming emails from and to NatureScot may be monitored.

Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois diomhair agus airson an neach no buidheann ainmichte a- mhain. Mas e gun
d’ fhuair sibh am post-dealain seo le mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach- sgriobhaidh.

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s docha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a- mach bho
NadarAlba.

Please be aware of cyber-crime.

We will not change bank account details during the course of a transaction. If you are due to transfer money to Harper Macleod and have
received an e-mail with sort code and account details you should call your Harper Macleod contact to corroborate these details. Please
use a phone number from our website or terms of engagement letter and not one from the same e-mail as contains the bank account
details. For other advice on protection from cyber-crime, see the National Cyber Security Centre website.

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Harper Macleod LLP is limited liability partnership regulated by the Law Society of Scotland, whose registered number is S0300331 and
whose registered office is at The Cadoro, 45 Gordon Street, Glasgow G1 3PE, United Kingdom. Information, conclusions, opinions and/or
advice contained in this message (or its attachments) are not given or endorsed by Harper Macleod LLP, unless originating from Harper
Macleod LLP and transmitted in the normal course of their business. This message (and its attachments) is confidential and subject to
legal professional privilege, and may be exempt from disclosure requirements arising under applicable law. Use, disclosure,
transmission, copying or alteration of this message (or its attachments) is strictly forbidden unless expressly authorised by Harper
Macleod LLP. This message (and its attachments) are intended for the named addressee only. If you have received this message (or its
attachments) in error please destroy it and all copies of it and notify the sender immediately. This message (and its attachments) have
been scanned for viruses prior to leaving the Harper Macleod LLP network, however Harper Macleod LLP does not guarantee that this
message (or its attachments) will be free from viruses, malicious code or such like. Harper Macleod LLP may process (including monitor)
emails sent or received by it to enable it to comply with applicable law, operate its business, and/or to protect it or its clients.

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

[REDACTED: OUT OF SCOPE]
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From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 27 May 2025 17:32

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@btconnect.com>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@confor.org.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gwct.org.uk>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@scottishgamekeepers.co.uk>; Claudia Rowse
<Claudia.Rowse@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]J@cairngorms.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@sepa.org.uk>; David Frew <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nts.org.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@annandaleestates.co.uk>; Davy McCracken <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@sruc.ac.uk>; Donna Smith <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@crofting.org>;
Duncan Orr-Ewing - RSPBS <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@rspb.org.uk>; Harriet
Donald <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@lochlomond-trossachs.org>; lain M. Maclver
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@crofting.gov.scot>; Jake Swindells <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]J@countryside-alliance.org>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@scottishwater.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; Katrina Candy <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@heathertrust.co.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@crofting.gov.scot>; Mark Wilson <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@bto.org.uk>; Patrick Stirling-Aird <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@live.co.uk>; Peter Clark (Scotland) <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@basc.org.uk>; Robin Pakeman <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@hutton.ac.uk>;
Roger Burton <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@heathertrust.co.uk>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]J@gmail.com>; Rory Kennedy <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gwect.org.uk>; Ross Ewing <ross.ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; Sarah Cowie <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nfus.org.uk>; scottishoffice@bds.org.uk

Cc: Donald Fraser <Donald.Fraser@nature.scot>

Subject: Moorland Forum - For info and circulation - summary details on measuring peat
depths for a muirburn licence.

Dear Moorland Forum members,

Many thanks to everyone that attended and contributed to the site visit at West Glen
Almond Estate on Friday. It was a thought provoking and stimulating day. We will
circulate a draft outline note of the key themes soon.

One of the discussion points was around the developing muirburn licence and the
peat depth survey guidance. Below, for information and wider circulation, are links to
key information on the developing muirburn licence and a summary of the key points
in the peat survey guidance.

Links to key information

e General information on the muirburn licence can be found here:
https://www.nature.scot/professional-advice/protected-areas-and-
species/licensing/muirburn-licensing

e Survey guidance can be found here: https://www.nature.scot/doc/guidance-peat-
depth-survey-muirburn-licensing

e The interactive map can be found here:
https://ogc.nature.scot/geoserver/www/maps/muirburn-survey-map.html
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Summary of key points on peat survey guidance

Background

The definition of ‘Peatland’ used in the Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act
2024 refers to land where the soil has a layer of peat with a thickness of 40cm or more. This
definition differs from standard soil or habitat classification definitions used in Scotland which
defines peat as a depth of 50cm or more. This means that if an applicant wants to burn for a
non-peatland purpose, they may need to provide some extra information.

What do | need to do if | am planning to apply for a muirburn licence?

You can use the NatureScot peatland map to identify whether the area you wish to burn is
considered to be peatland or not, and if you need to carry out a survey. This map shows 3
categories of land: peatland, non-peatland and uncertain areas (where peat layers are
present but the depth is not known). Survey methods are described in the muirburn licensing
survey guidance.

How to carry out the survey

You can use the interactive map to identify the area you wish to burn. The on-line system will
generate survey points to help identify where to take peat depth measurements. These co-
ordinates can be downloaded as a gpx file which is compatible with GPS devices and mobile
apps. A downloadable spreadsheet is provided to record the survey results. This document
can be submitted with the online licence application. The system will produce a map from
this data which defines the areas licensed for peatland and non-peatland purposes.

Do | need to survey my whole area before | apply for a licence?

It is not necessary to survey the whole area you wish to muirburn ahead of applying. You
can increase or add more muirburn areas over the course of an approved licence by
providing further survey data. Additional areas will not be licensed until the appropriate data
has been received. You can only add areas related to purpose already approved on the
licence.

I’d be grateful if you could share these details with your members and with anyone
else who you think it will be of interest to.

Kind Regards,
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
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From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>

Sent: 09 April 2025 14:14

To: GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS <GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>;
LICENSING <LICENSING@nature.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: Muirburn - Glen Ogil - WMMBS Act 2024 - Cab Sec RALRI - Case Ref ME8490 -
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Angus - 202500460766 - MAC - Contribution from NS -
090425

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

Many thanks for providing this helpful contribution so quickly.
Kind regards,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] MSc HRM (CIPD) / BA (Hons) Business Studies / Agri
Engineering / Automotive Mgmt | Policy Officer | Wildlife & Protected Areas | Natural
Resources Division | Environment & Forestry Directorate | Area 3G South | The Scottish
Government | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh | EH6 6QQ | [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]|
email: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@gov.scot

From: GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS <GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>

Sent: 09 April 2025 13:59

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS
<GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>; LICENSING <LICENSING@nature.scot>
Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn - Glen Ogil - WMMBS Act 2024 - Cab Sec RALRI - Case Ref
ME8490 - [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Angus - 202500460766 - MAC - Asked NS -
080425

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],
Hopefully some of the below will be of use, but let me know if we can provide further info.

Points that may be useful to highlight in a response.

e The Wildlife Management and Muirburn Act 2024 regulates the use of muirburn and
means that all muirburn will need to be carried out under license.

e The licensing scheme is still in development (and we are working to the expectation
that the muirburn licence provisions in this legislation will be introduced ahead of the
2025/26 muirburn season).

e A condition of the licence will be that anyone carrying out muirburn must have
completed a training course. In future this will include both an online and a practical
course. Currently no training is required for carrying out muirburn in Scotland.
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e Muirburn is currently guided by the Muirburn Code which sets out both the law and
good practice relating to muirburn. The Code applies to all moorland managers and
includes farmers, crofters, shepherds and gamekeepers.

e NatureScot are currently consulting on a new Muirburn Code that will accompany the
licensing scheme, which sets out the essential considerations for muirburn, including
where and when muirburn can be carried out, the required notifications before setting
muirburn and necessary safety measures

e The muirburn licensing scheme and revised Muirburn Code are being introduced to
help ensure that muirburn is carried out safely and appropriately.

Thanks
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Sent: 08 April 2025 10:18

To: GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS <GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>;
LICENSING <LICENSING@nature.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish
Government <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn - Glen Ogil - WMMBS Act 2024 - Cab Sec RALRI - Case Ref
ME8490 - [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Angus - 202500460766 - MAC - Asked NS -
080425

Thanks [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

| appreciate the update and Monday would be fine if colleagues are busy.
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
email: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]gov.scot

From: GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS <GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>

Sent: 08 April 2025 10:09

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

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)].

No worries. | will pick this up and get a response back to you for Friday. Just a note for info
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that our muirburn lead ([REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]) is on leave this week but that
wont impact on a response.

Thanks
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>

Sent: 08 April 2025 10:01

To: GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS <GOVERNMENT_RELATIONS@nature.scot>;
LICENSING <LICENSING@nature.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>

Subject: Muirburn - Glen Ogil - WMMBS Act 2024 - Cab Sec RALRI - Case Ref ME8490 -
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] - Angus - 202500460766 - MAC - Asked NS - 080425

Dear NS,

| would be grateful if you could provide me with a short contribution for this case by Friday,
11 April (if possible please),

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

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)j@gov.scot>
On Behalf Of Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity

Sent: 04 April 2025 15:17

To: Central Correspondence Unit <CentralCorrespondenceUnit@gov.scot>

Cc: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity <MinisterforAC@gov.scot>

Subject: FW: Re Muirburn (Case Ref: ME8490)

Hello,

For MR please.

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] (she/her)

Assistant Private Secretary to the Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity — Jim
Fairlie MSP

The Scottish Government

St Andrew’s House | Regent Road | Edinburgh | EH1 3DG

E: MinisterforAC@gov.scot

>

Scottish Government

gov.scot
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All e-mails and attachments sent by a Ministerial Private Office to any other official on behalf
of a Minister relating to a decision, request or comment made by a Minister, or a note of a
Ministerial meeting, must be filed appropriately by the recipient. Private Offices do not keep
official records of such e-mails or attachments.

Scottish Ministers, Special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms

of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See www.lobbying.scot

From: Mairi Gougeon MSP

Sent: 04 April 2025 14:12

To: Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity

Subject: FW: Re Muirburn (Case Ref: ME8490)

Good afternoon

We have been contacted by a constituent regarding muirburn. You will note from his email
he has concerns about this and | would be grateful if you could provide a response that |
may forward on to him.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
Office Manager

Office of Mairi Gougeon MSP

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@btinternet.com>

Sent: 3 April 2025 19:08

To: Gougeon M (Mairi), MSP <Mairi. Gougeon.msp@parliament.scot>
Subject: Re Muirburn

Dear Mairi Gougeon,

| write with extreme anger after being choked with smoke and having to bring the washing in.
Please look at the attached photograph and tell me if you think that this is acceptable. The
burning is taking place in Glen Ogil but we are having to put up with the effects here in the
next glen. Do you think that we should tolerate this just so a few wealthy individuals can
massacre grouse for fun?

This is not an isolated incident, the Angus Glens have been alight and choked with smoke
with fires in every glen affecting not just the hills but the local villages too. | should be able to
go out for a walk without having to worry about my health.

What about the moorland birds that have arrived here for breeding or the adders just coming
out of hibernation or any of the other creatures that rely on this habitat.
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Is any thought give to the air pollution created or the destruction of peat and sphagnum
moss?

Is the government policy still to ban wood burning stoves? It makes a mockery of the whole
thing if this muirburn is allowed to go ahead, surely if one is bad for the environment the
other must be too. It seems to be one rule for the rich and one rule for everyone else.

| have contacted you before on these issues but the ineffectual reply seems to imply that
muirburn will still be allowed despite the detriment to public health, environmental pollution
and wildlife and no regard to the concerns of and inconvenience to the general public.

Also | am told that these rich landowners are able to get government grants to carry out
muirburn, please tell me that this is wrong!

| voted SNP having been assured that something would be done about these issues but it all
seems like empty promises once you have been elected.

| await your reply with interest

kind regards
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
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The Scottish Parliament: Making a positive difference to the lives of the people of Scotland
Parlamaid na h-Alba: A’ toirt deagh bhuaidh air beatha sluagh na h-Alba
www.parliament.scot : facebook.com/scottishparliament : twitter.com/scotparl

The information in this email may be confidential. If you think you have received this email in error please delete it and do not share its contents.

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use,
disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the email,
remove any copies from your system and inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and for other
lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.

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

Mairi Gougeon MSP
Mairi.gougeon@parliament.scot

Ourref: 202500460766
Your Reference: Re Muirburn (Case Ref: ME8490)

22 May 2025

Dear Mairi,

Thank you for your correspondence of 4 April 2025 raising the concerns of your constituent
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] regarding muirburn in the Angus glens.

| am sorry to hear about the recent experiences of your constituent [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] and would like to reassure both you and your constituent that the
Scottish Government takes the practice of muirburn seriously.

Muirburn is a necessary land management tool which has been employed for centuries and
that it helps biodiversity by creating mosaic cover used by many different species of red
listed wading birds. It is also a vital tool in stemming wildfires getting out of control by
reducing fuel loads.

The Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 regulates the use of muirburn
and means that all muirburn will need to be carried out under licence. The licensing scheme
is still in development; and we are working to the expectation that the muirburn licence
provisions in this legislation will be introduced ahead of the 2025/26 muirburn season.

A muirburn licensing scheme will include tighter regulation and oversight of muirburn, and a
ban on burning on peatland (except in very limited circumstances) as well as clear penalties
to encourage compliance. Legislation will be accompanied by a new Code of Practice on
muirburn and the Act includes provisions to extend licensing for all muirburn regardless of
the time of year that it is undertaken.

A condition of the licence will be that anyone carrying out muirburn must have completed a
trainingcourse. In future this will include both an online and a practical course. Currently no
training is required for carrying out muirburn in Scotland.
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| can also confirm that we do not provide funding to support practitioners to carry out
muirburn.

As to your constituent’s concerns regarding muirburn impacting on wildlife, the Wildlife
Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024, has changed the dates within which
muirburn can be carried out. The season’s end date has been brought forward to 31st March
(from 15th April) to avoid impacts on ground nesting birds as well as reptiles coming out of
hibernation.

Regarding muirburn and air quality, limitations on muirburn for the purposes of
environmental sustainability will have co-benefits for air quality. The muirburn licensing
scheme and revised Muirburn Code are being introduced to help ensure that muirburn is
carried out safely and appropriately; if muirburn is causing an offence in relation to public
health or safety, or causing a nuisance to the public it can be reported to Police Scotland.
NatureScot will also have statutory powers to modify, suspend or revoke a licence for non-
compliance with the new legislation.

As to wood burning stoves, the New Build Heat Standard, which came into force on 1 April
2024, prohibits direct emissions main heating systems, such as gas and oil boilers, in new
buildings and some conversions with some exceptions. It was amended following a review to
accommodate the use of bioenergy (including wood burning stoves) and peat systems to
tackle concerns expressed by rural and island communities, and industry. However, the
Standard represents a significant development in the transition to clean heat, ensuring that
new buildings are future-proofed with no need for owners to undertake retrofit works.

| hope this reassures the concerns of your constituent.

Yours sincerely,

JIM FAIRLIE

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Sent: 13 May 2025 12:14

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: Muirburn - Upper Clyde Valley - Tinto Hill near Biggar - [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - 202500461858 - Asked NS and EQD - NS - Update - 130525

Thank you, [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)].

I've just returned from annual leave. | am grateful to you for confirming that funding towards
the practice of muirburn is not provided by NS/LMO'’s etc (as | have received a similar
complaint which suggests that this may be the case).
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

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 18 April 2025 09:15

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION

11(2)]@gov.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION

11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:

REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn - Upper Clyde Valley - Tinto Hill near Biggar - [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - 202500461858 - Asked NS and EQD - NS - 170425

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

Thanks, and that makes sense. [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]
Thanks,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Sent: 17 April 2025 09:46

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] -
Scottish Government <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot

Subject: Muirburn - Upper Clyde Valley - Tinto Hill near Biggar -[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - 202500461858 - Asked NS and EQD - NS - 170425

Thank you, [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

| shall focus on the draft response stating: “...if muirburn is causing an offence in relation to
public health or safety, or causing a nuisance to the public it can be reported to Police
Scotland”.

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
email: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)j@gov.scot

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>

Sent: 16 April 2025 14:19

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION

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
REGULATION 11(2)] - 202500461858 - Asked NS and EQD - 160425

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

| don’t think | have much to add to the points you highlight below re the forthcoming muirburn
licence and revised Muirburn Code. There is a supplementary information guide on
‘Offences and Legislation’ which sits alongside the current Muirburn Code. This refers to an
offence of ‘creating smoke that is a nuisance to inhabitants of the neighbourhood’ (Clean Air
Act 1993, s17) but on a quick look this specific section seems to have been repealed (this
would need to be double checked). The other potential offences which are listed in the
guidance relate to safety on roads i.e. not allowing a fire to endanger traffic (Roads
(Scotland) Act 1984, s100.

Let me know if there is any other specific detail you are looking for.
Many thanks,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Sent: 16 April 2025 12:26

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] -
Scottish Government <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - Scottish Government <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@gov.scot

Subject: Muirburn - Upper Clyde Valley - Tinto Hill near Biggar - [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)] - 202500461858 - Asked NS and EQD - 160425

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

| would be grateful if you could provide me with a contribution regarding this case; a
contribution regarding muirburn on Tinto Hill would be most helpful, if possible please?

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)], further to my email of yesterday asking for your
thoughts regarding my draft response on air quality and muirburn for a similar case, | would
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be grateful if you could consider providing similar feedback for this case. As you are aware,
the muirburn licensing scheme and revised Muirburn Code are being introduced to help
ensure that muirburn is carried out safely and appropriately; if muirburn is causing an offence
in relation to public health or safety, or causing a nuisance to the public it can be reported to
Police Scotland.

It would therefore be useful if you could clarify whether a local authority can refuse to ask a
land manager to restrict muirburn if it is causing a nuisance — | take it that the nuisance
should be reported directly to the police? This is regarding the following extract taken from
the MiCase below:

“Earlier this week, | contacted South Lanarkshire Environmental Health to ask if they could
do anything about the constant thick smoke in the valley, which hangs for days. They told me
that if a neighbour was causing the pollution, they had legal powers to stop it, but because
the pollution was being deliberately caused by land managers, there was nothing they could
do. Why does the Scottish Government think this is acceptable?”

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

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>
On Behalf Of Cabinet Secretary for Health & Social Care 2024

Sent: 14 April 2025 09:51

To: Central Correspondence Unit <CentralCorrespondenceUnit@gov.scot>

Subject: FW: Muirburn

OR

Kind regards,

Deepthi Baby

Assistant Private Secretary to Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care - Neil Gray MSP

The Scottish Government, St Andrew’s House | Regent Road | Edinburgh | EH1 3DG
E-mail: CabSecHSC@gov.scot

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
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From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Sent: 12 April 2025 18:22

To: Mairi.McAllan.msp@parliament.scot; John.Swinney.msp@parliament.scot;
Gillian.Martin.msp@parliament.scot; Cabinet Secretary for Health & Social Care 2024
Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Subject: Muirburn

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)][REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)][REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Dear All,
| am writing to you as a resident of the Upper Clyde Valley, near Biggar.

For the past two weeks the whole area has been subjected to large amounts of smoke from
Muirburn on the surrounding hills, particularly from Tinto Hill, which has been on fire
constantly - even overnight - for more than a week. | realise that this practice is completely
legal, but it raises many questions for the Scottish Government to answer regarding the
health and wellbeing of the Scottish population and the desecration of natural habitats.

Why does the Scottish Government consider it acceptable that people in rural areas should
have to shelter indoors with doors and windows closed for long periods of time in order to
avoid the damaging effects of smoke and particulate matter which spreads over huge areas
during the fires? People with respiratory and cardiovascular conditions should not have to
remain indoors when the weather is good, as has happened over the last couple of weeks.
This is particularly relevant given that Scotland has the lowest life expectancy in Western
Europe. Residents of Glasgow are protected from the worst effects of polluting vehicles by a
clean air policy; meanwhile, residents of rural areas are subjected to air quality that would
make Delhi or Beijing look healthy in comparison.

Considering that Scotland is ranked 212 out of 240 countries in terms of biodiversity and the
preservation of nature, why does the Scottish government consider this scorched earth
method of land management acceptable? After weeks of deliberate burning, the iconic Tinto
Hill is now a charred and blackened wasteland. What happened to the commitment to
biodiversity? This area is now a depleted desert, devoid of ALL LIFE.

Why does the Scottish Government consider it acceptable that in the midst of a climate
crisis, the deliberate destruction of one the world’s most effective stores of carbon (peat), is
being destroyed on a daily basis, not to mention the resulting pollution when disintegrated
peat is washed into the water supply. How does the Scottish Government consider that
putting millions of tons of carbon into the atmosphere is going to help Scotland to achieve its
stated aim of becoming carbon neutral by 20457

Last week, | was walking in the Southern Uplands near the village of Coulter. Before | set off,
| seriously considered whether the health benefits of the walk would outweigh the health
negatives of exercising in this heavily polluted atmosphere. | decided to go anyway, but a
thick haze restricted the views, the air was toxic and my hiking clothes still smell of smoke a
week later. Why does the Scottish Government think this is acceptable?
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Earlier this week, | contacted South Lanarkshire Environmental Health to ask if they could do
anything about the constant thick smoke in the valley, which hangs for days. They told me
that if a neighbour was causing the pollution, they had legal powers to stop it, but because
the pollution was being deliberately caused by land managers, there was nothing they could
do. Why does the Scottish Government think this is acceptable?

Muirburn needs to be abolished by effective legislation, without the opportunity for self-
regulation. This is a serious public health matter, not to mention the environmental and
climate change implications. The prime purpose of government is to protect its citizens from
harm; the Scottish Government is failing dismally in this respect by allowing a small coterie
of landowners to carry out a massively harmful and woefully outdated form of land
management, to the detriment of the rest of the population.

It is unclear as to exactly what measures are in place to check that landowners are
complying with the Wildlife Management and Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024. A 5-yearly
review of the operation and effectiveness of the licensing of the making of muirburn (as
stated in this Act (32)) is seriously insufficient when citizens, wildlife, and environment are
being so badly affected every year.

According to the Act cited above, the restrictions applied to the muirburn licence are the
following:

13. Application for muirburn licence

(2) The purposes are—

(a)where the land to which the application relates is NOT peatland—
(i)managing the habitats of moorland game or wildlife,

(ilimproving the grazing potential of moorland for livestock,

(iif)conserving, restoring, enhancing or managing the natural environment,
(iv)preventing, or reducing the risk of, wildfires causing damage to habitats,
(v)preventing, or reducing the risk of, wildfires causing harm to people or damage to
property,

(vi)research,

(b)where the land to which the application relates IS peatland—

(i)restoring the natural environment,

(i)preventing, or reducing the risk of, wildfires causing damage to habitats,
(iif)preventing, or reducing the risk of, wildfires causing harm to people or damage to
property,

(iv)research.

Given that Tinto Hill contains significant areas of peatland (scientific analysis of the James
Hutton Institute classifies the land as mainly 4.2 and 5.1/5.2 with a mix of peat, mineral gleys
and brown soil), why has a muirburn licence been granted to the owner of the hill?

The date given in the said Act for the end of the muirburn season is 31t March. Where is it
stated that this date has been extended into April?

As | write this on April 12t (14:00), Tinto Hill is alight yet again, and clouds of thick smoke
are belching across the Clyde Valley towards Lanark. | am amazed that there is any
vegetation left to burn on Tinto after the hugely damaging conflagrations of the past couple
of weeks.
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| look forward to responses to my questions.
With best wishes

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

Documet 14a

Environment and Forestry Directorate W Scottish Government
Nature Division . Riaghaltas na h-Alba

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gmail.com

Ourref: 202500461858

21 May 2025
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Dear [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

Thank you for your correspondence of 12 April 2025 to Scottish Ministers, raising your
concerns regarding muirburn in South Lanarkshire. This falls under the portfolio of Jim
Fairlie, Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity. | have been asked to respond.

| am sorry to hear about your recent experience and would like to assure you that the
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
training course. In future this will include both an online and a practical course. Currently no
training is required for carrying out muirburn in Scotland.

As to your concerns regarding muirburn impacting on wildlife, the Wildlife Management and
Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024, has changed the dates within which muirburn can be carried
out. The season’s end date has been brought forward to 31st March (from 15th April) to
avoid impacts on ground nesting birds as well as reptiles coming out of hibernation.

Muirburn is currently guided by the Muirburn Code which sets out both the law and good
practice relating to muirburn. The Code applies to all moorland managers and includes
farmers, crofters, shepherds and gamekeepers. NatureScot are currently consulting on a
new Muirburn Code that will accompany the licensing scheme, which sets out the essential
considerations for muirburn, including where and when muirburn can be carried out, the
required notifications before setting muirburn and necessary safety measures.

Muirburn is a commonly used management tool that can be effective in delivering certain
management requirements, however it has the potential to be damaging therefore the
Muirburn Code sets out principles which ‘must’ and ‘should’ be followed to minimise the risk.
The Code states that there needs to be a management purpose for the burn, identification of
features, protected areas and species which should be avoided. Following the Code also
ensures that other legislation is complied with, for example the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 which protects breeding birds.

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
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As to your query on the different types of topography which have been subjected to muirburn
recently; the muirburn licensing provisions under the Wildlife Management and Muirburn
(Scotland) Act 2024 have yet to come into effect as they are due to come into force for the
2025 to 2026 muirburn season onwards to provide practitioners with enough time to
complete the mandatory training requirements.

| hope this reassures your concerns.

Yours sincerely,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 05 March 2025 09:38

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@firescotland.gov.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@gov.scot>

Cc: Donald Fraser <Donald.Fraser@nature.scot>

Subject: Muirburn Training Requirements for 2025 - 2026 Draft Briefing and Comms
(A4922284)

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

We’re keen to agree a way forward for the muirburn training and the comms around this. I've
attached a proposed summary of what will be required for 2025/°26 aimed at practitioners. I'd
be grateful for your comments on this. We will add a summary of this approach on the
muirburn licensing page on the NatureScot website. This will help address the uncertainty
amongst some of what is expected with regard to training.

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

Sent: 11 March 2025 15:13

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@firescotland.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: Comms lines to take on muirburn training

Thanks [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] — happy with this.

18014001 at V. m -
:
5
v ]
2
m
oo (|5

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

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@firescotland.gov.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>

Subject: Comms lines to take on muirburn training

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] & [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
We’'ve pulled together some proposed lines to take on the muirburn training and would be
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

Background information

The commencement dates for the muirburn licence provisions of the Wildlife Management
and Muirburn Act 2024 will be announced by the Scottish Government. We are working to
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

Sent: Friday, April 4, 2025 3:40 PM

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; Communications Net Zero, Energy and Rural Affairs
<CommunicationsNetZero&RuralAffairs@gov.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; Cat Synnot <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; Jason Ormiston <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
MEDIA <MEDIA@nature.scot>

Subject: For review: Lines to take on SLE legal challenge to Muirburn Code

Hi everyone,

For your review, please see below a line to take for SG review, in response to SLE, NFUS
and other organisations challenging the legality of the draft muirburn code and the decisions
taken so far.

You'll see that we've noted below the government policy contact on this, [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)], so you can keep him in the loop as well please.

Nature of Enquiry — News Release/ Lines Lines to take
etc
Purpose — for info/ comment/ approval For info

Deadline — day/ time -

Overview — short steer on what is being sent | Line to take on SLE legal challenge to
Muirburn Code

NatureScot signed off — Y/N — name [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

SG policy contact agreed — Y/N - name [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
NatureScot Policy contact agreed — Y/N - [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)], Donald
name Fraser

Line to take

The licensing scheme for muirburn is still in development. We will continue to engage with all
stakeholders as this progresses. This includes through the ongoing consultation on the new
Muirburn Code that will accompany the licensing scheme.
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The consultation is available here: https://www.nature.scot/doc/consultation-draft-guidance-
muirburn-code

The muirburn licensing scheme and revised Muirburn Code are being introduced to help
ensure that muirburn is carried out safely and appropriately.

Background information
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Cheers,
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] | Publicity Manager
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot

NatureScot | Meadowbank House, 6th Floor South, 153 London Road, Edinburgh, EH8
7AU|

NadarAlba | Taigh Bruach an Ailein, 6mh Lar a Deas, 153 Rathad Lunnainn, Dun Eideann,
EH8 7AU

nature.scot | @NatureScot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba
Don'’t like email? Chat with me on Teams instead.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of
the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error
please notify the system manager or the sender.

Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming emails from and to
NatureScot may be monitored.

Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois diomhair agus airson an neach
no buidheann ainmichte a- mhain. Mas e gun d’ fhuair sibh am post-dealain seo le
mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach- sgriobhaidh.

Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s ddécha gun téid suil a chumail air puist-
dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a- mach bho NadarAlba.

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 18 March 2025 13:57

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn Assumptions paper
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Interesting - think the who and why bit might be better laid out as a table with assumed
users as columns as a notes section.

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 18 March 2025 11:48

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@nature.scot>
Subject: RE: Muirburn Assumptions paper

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],
That makes sense that we don’t want an epic paper. We just need a marker for further

consideration about what happens when things are outwith the applicants control, and when

certain applicant types face particular barriers / challenges.
Ta

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 18 March 2025 11:21

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
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn Assumptions paper

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Thank you for having a look and suggesting the below. [REDACTED: REGULATION
10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] shared this document with me after the last MLTG
meeting - Muirburn Licencing Task Group - Case Studies/ Scenarios - 20 January 2023
(A3903790)

Cheers,

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
WWWw.gov.scot
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[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] | Senior Licensing Officer — Policy and Legislation |

He/Him
NatureScot |Inverdee House | Aberdeen | AB11 9QA |
nature.scot | @nature_scot | Scotland’s Nature Agency | Buidheann Nadair na h-Alba

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>

Sent: 18 March 2025 11:07

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
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@nature.scot>

Subject: RE: Muirburn Assumptions paper

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)()]

Thanks
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot>

Sent: 17 March 2025 11:09

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
11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Subject: Muirburn Assumptions paper

Morning All,
Recently, | was tasked [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]
[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] and [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] happy to
discuss this with you two sooner rather than later, [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)].

Muirburn Licensable purpose assumption - 12 March 2025 (A5046085)

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

Sent: 24 January 2025 14:27

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@gov.scot>

Cc: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nature.scot>

Subject: Muirburn licencing & [REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Hi [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 10(5)(f)]

Happy to discuss further

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] | Operations Manager — Protected Areas, Innovation
:lg?ulr)eastzot | Great Glen House | Leachkin Road | Inverness | IV3 8NW | t: [REDACTED:

REGULATION 11(2)]
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
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From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]J@gov.scot <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@gov.scot>

Sent: Wednesday, June 18, 2025 2:33 PM

To: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@btconnect.com>; info@bds.org.uk; peopleteam@bto.org.uk; Carol Anderson
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@scottishgamekeepers.co.uk>;
Claudia.Rowse@nature.scot; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@cairngorms.co.uk;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@sepa.org.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@nts.org.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@annandaleestates.co.uk;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@sruc.ac.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@crofting.org; Duncan Orr-Ewing <[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@rspb.org.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@lochlomond-trossachs.org; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@crofting.gov.scot; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@countryside-alliance.org>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@scottishwater.co.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@nature.scot; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@heathertrust.co.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nature.scot;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@crofting.gov.scot; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@bto.org.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@scottishlandandestates.co.uk; Nick
Hesford <nhesford@gwct.org.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|@hotmail.com;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@live.co.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)J@basc.org.uk>; [REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@confor.org.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@hutton.ac.uk; [REDACTED:
REGULATION 11(2)]@heathertrust.co.uk; [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
<[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)|J@gmail.com>;
Ross.Ewing@scottishlandandestates.co.uk; Ross MacLeod <rmacleod@gwct.org.uk>;
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@nfus.org.uk

Subject: RE: Update on commencement date for the new muirburn licence

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

I'll be at the RHS tomorrow and Friday so have limited availability this week but will try to
respond to any questions.

Kind regards

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

(he / him) Why have | put this?

| am currently working at home. The best way to get in contact with me is via MS
Teams or Outlook.

Team Leader | Wildlife Management Team | Nature Division | Environment and Forestry
Directorate

M: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
WWWw.gov.scot
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Scottish Government | 3-H South, Victoria Quay, Leith, Edinburgh, EH6 6QQ

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

This communication from the Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust contains information which is confidential and may also be privileged. It is for the
exclusive use of the addressee. If you are not the addressee please note that any distribution, copying or use of this communication or the
information in it is prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please telephone us immediately to arrange for its return. For more
information about how we protect your personal data see our Privacy Policyon our website.

The Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee registered in England and Wales under number 05579632,
registered charity number 1112023 (England and Wales) and SC038868 (Scotland). VAT Reg 665 2959 92. Registered Office: Burgate Manor,
Fordingbridge, Hampshire SP6 1EF Tel: +44(0)1425 652381. Email: info@gwct.org.uk Web: www.gwct.org.uk Registered Office: Burgate Manor,
Fordingbridge, Hampshire SP6 1EF

Game & Wildlife Conservation Trading is a company limited by guarantee (registered no 1503620, VAT Reg No 323 7013 94.) which carries out
trading and advisory activities and some fundraising events for the Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust.

Registered in England and Wales. Registered Office: Burgate Manor, Fordingbridge, Hampshire SP6 1EF

[REDACTED: OUT OF SCOPE]

Begin forwarded message:

From: [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)] <[REDACTED: REGULATION
11(2)]@googlemail.com>

Date: 2 October 2024 at 10:41:42 BST

To: "Gougeon M (Mairi), MSP" <Mairi.Gougeon.msp@parliament.scot>
Subject: Muirburn (resending with postal address)

Dear Mairi Gougeon,

| am writing to you as you are my MSP, and cabinet secretary for rural affairs and land
reform.

| was hopeful that the recent land management legislation would actually have some impact
on the dominant shooting estates in our glens. But on Monday 1st October, which | think is
the start date of muirburn, the degree of burning was unbelievable. Our glen, Glenquiech,
was absoloutely enveloped in smoke, coming from the east, where large areas of hillside
were on fire in neighbouring glens.

There was such publicity around the wildlife management and muirburn legislation that | was
hopeful that the dominance of these largely empty estates would be reduced. It seems
bizarre to allow these huge fires, while talking about reducing carbon emissions.

| look forward to your response.

Thank you,

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
11(2)]@googlemail.com

Your ref: Muirburn
Ourref: 202400434732

28 October 2024

Dear [REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)],

Thank you for your correspondence of 2 October 2024 to Mairi Gougeon, Cabinet Secretary
for Rural Affairs, Land Reform and Islands, raising your concerns regarding muirburn. This
falls under the portfolio of Jim Fairlie, Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity. | have been
asked to respond.

| would like to assure you that the Scottish Government takes this matter seriously. The
requirement for a licence for all muirburn was introduced by the Wildlife Management and
Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024. This part of the Act has not yet been brought in to effect as
time is required to develop the licensing system, but we do expect it to be brought in to effect
prior to the beginning of next year’s muirburn season.

At this point it will be an offence to carry out muirburn without a licence. Muirburn will only be
allowed if it fits one of the licensable purposes set out in the Act. The purposes are divided
between those allowed on peatland and those allowed on non-peatland. The purposes on
peatlands are to reduce the risks of wildfires, to restoring the natural environments and for
research. Before a licence can be issued for muirburn on peatland other ways of controlling
vegetation need to have been considered. The purposes on non-peatland are wider and
include management of moorland game and to improve grazing for livestock.

NatureScot, as the licensing authority is working with others to develop the licensing
approach to muirburn. The licence will require a licence holder to have regard to the
Muirburn Code (Muirburn code NatureScot) and all those carrying out muirburn need to have
undergone training. The intention of the licence is to ensure that any muirburn that is carried
out is done so in a way which supports biodiversity and climate targets.

| hope this reassures your concerns.

1SO14001 at V.Q.
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Yours sincerely,

[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]
ND : Wildlife Management Unit

I
Scottish

Wildlife
SCOTLAND Trust

Jim Fairlie MSP

Minister for Agriculture and
Connectivity Scottish Government
St Andrew's House Regent Road,
Edinburgh, EH1 3DG

Sent by email to MinisterforAC@gov.scot
24t April 2025

Dear Minister,
Improving muirburn regulation, protecting peatlands

In the light of recent calls in the press to delay the implementation of the muirburn
elements of the Wildlife Management & Muirburn (Scotland) Act 2024 (WMM Act), we
are writing to demonstrate that while there may be voices urging the government to
delay, there are others that want to see these provisions put in place quickly. Please do
hold firm. It's been five and a half years since the Werrity report recommended better
regulation of muirburn, let's get on with it.

When you attended a meeting of the Muirburn Code Working Group in January, you
expressed your wish to see the new regulations implemented swiftly and directed
NatureScot to work towards a September start date. We support you in this intention
and believe it is entirely reasonable.

We now see members of the land management community coming forward to say that
implementation will be too onerous, that a delay is required and that the new

regulation could see fewer people undertaking muirburn which could increase the
wildfire risk.

It is perhaps no surprise that those that do not like the new regulations are trying to delay
them, but they appear to be using the recent dry weather and wildfires as a way of
intimidating the government into slowing down, thus maintaining the status quo for
longer.

We encourage you to hold firm and highlight some salient points:
On the new regulation supposedly deterring people from doing muirburn and increasing
the wildfire risk
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e While the argument is made that new regulation will deter people from doing
muirburn and therefore increase the wildfire risk, it is important to note that
muirburn is itself a cause ofwildfires (NatureScot’s own commissioned
research suggests that 15-60% of wildfires start as muirburn).

e \Where people do continue to undertake muirburn, the whole point of the
new regulation is to improve muirburn practice and so it should result in
fewer escaped burns resulting in wildfires.

e A higher fuel load does not inevitably mean an increased incidence of
wildfire. Fires need an ignition point and much greater efforts are needed to
raise public awareness of wildfire risks to reduce the number of accidental
fires.

e As you know, the new regime specifically includes a licensable purpose to
burn to mitigate wildfire; it was designed in such a way that land managers
can specifically address this important issue.

e The long-term solution to decreasing wildfire risk is to restore and re-wet
peatland habitat in our uplands. The IUCN UK Peatland Programme has
produced a briefing on wildfire which highlights the key role of re-wetting
peatlands in building future wildfire resilience into Scotland’s landscapes.
The IUCN will work with Peatland Action and delivery organisations to look
at ways in which peatland restoration can help to manage wildfire risk.

Practicality of the new regime

¢ \While the suggestion is made that it is too onerous to map peatland in the
timescale available i.e. before September, the IUCN UK Peatland
Programme has highlighted that many other commercial ventures are
expected to use very similar peat survey methodology, including forestry
and the renewables sector across vast swathes of land. The idea that the
requirement to map peatland is too onerous is overplayed. NatureScot have
provided a map to help focus mapping requirements, which should help.

e The idea of short timescales is illusory. While it is true that a land manager
that definitely wants to burn on 15th September will have to have mapped
the peatland in the area relevant to the licence, we also know that most of
the burning takes place in the Spring and it is not a requirement that
everyone has to apply for a licence prior to 15th September. Many can take
longer to do the appropriate mapping, apply for a licence later in the year
and then burn in the Spring as usual. The supposed time pressure to get
everything completed by September is therefore not real.

e While from the land managers point of view it would be beneficial to apply
once for the whole area under management, it is also possible for land
managers to apply for a licence for one area in year one and another in year
two, which again gets round the issue of land managers having to map
entire estates.

Please do maintain your position on the implementation of muirburn and bring the new
regulations into force for the new season.
Yours sincerely,

Anne McCall Jo Pike
Director, RSPB Scotland Chief Executive, Scottish Wildlife Trust

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
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Minister for Agriculture and Connectivity V< Scottish Government
Jim Fairlie MSP . Riaghaltas na h-Alba

T: 0300 244 4000
E: scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Anne McCall
[REDACTED: REGULATION 11(2)]@rspb.org.uk

Our ref: 202500463195
Your ref: RSPB/SWT Muirburn

26 June 2025

Dear Anne McCall,

Thank you for your joint letter of 24 April 2025 on behalf of RSPB Scotland and Jo Pike,
Director of the Scottish Wildlife Trust, raising your concerns regarding any delay to
implementing the muirburn provisions under the Wildlife Management and Muirburn
(Scotland) Act 2024 (the Act).

| would like to assure both you and Jo Pike that the Scottish Government takes this matter
seriously. As you are aware, the Scottish Government has received requests from some land
managers to delay implementing the Act’'s muirburn provisions to provide them with more
time to complete their applications and peatland surveying. | have listened to the concerns of
stakeholders and after careful consideration | have decided to bring the muirburn licensing
scheme in to effect on 01 January 2026.

This will provide the necessary time for those undertaking peatland surveying to be able to
do so prior to the new legislation being implemented, whilst ensuring that the spring
muirburn, which is the main period muirburn takes place, is undertaken in line with the new
requirements.

| hope this proves helpful and reassures your concerns.

Yours sincerely,

Jim Fairlie

Victoria Quay, Edinburgh EH6 6QQ
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